RFP NNM0838773R

Page 24
Amendment 1

Attachment (A)

1) RFP Reference:  L.II-2 – General 

Question: it states “With the exclusion of graphics, all electronic files must be searchable and will not contain scanned document.” Will the Government make exception to this requirement for OSHA forms since they are usually provided in scanned form? (Note that all our historical OSHA forms are in scanned formats.)

Response:  Section L.II-2 (B) (4) states "Minimize the use of scanned images…"  The OSHA Form 300A is considered a scanned image, not a scanned document. (NO CHANGE TO RFP)
2) RFP Reference:  L.II-5.B.2

Question: Does the Government intend offerors to include EMR letters from both the prime Offeror and the major subcontractors, or only the prime Offeror? 

Response:  An EMR Letter is to be provided for the Prime Contractor.  EMR Letters for subcontractors are not required.  (NO CHANGE TO RFP)
3) RFP Reference:  L.II-5.B.2
Question: Will the Government consider excluding EMR letters from the Volume II page count?

Response:  No (NO CHANGE TO RFP)
4) RFP Reference:  L.II-5.B.3
Question: Will the Government consider excluding the completed Attachment   L-10 from the Volume II page count?

Response:  No (NO CHANGE TO RFP)
5) RFP Reference:  M.6.B

Question: Will the Government consider excluding the offeror's and major subcontractors' OSHA Form 300As from the Volume II page count?
Response:  No (NO CHANGE TO RFP)
6) RFP Reference:  L.II-5.B.2

Question: Are the Health and Safety requirements to incorporate company-wide experience covering multiple projects, or specifically for each one of the six selected projects?

Response:  The Health and Safety Requirements should incorporate company-wide experience covering multiple projects. (NO CHANGE TO RFP)
7) RFP Reference:  L.II-5.B.2

Question: Are insurance EMR letters required from all named subcontractors or just the Offeror?

Response:  An EMR Letter is to be provided for the Prime Contractor.  EMR Letters for subcontractors are not required. (NO CHANGE TO RFP)
8) RFP Reference:  L.II-5.B.3
Question: Is the Lost-Time Cases information to include company-wide experience covering multiple projects, or specifically for each one of the six selected projects?

Response:  The Lost-Time Cases should include company-wide experience covering multiple projects. (NO CHANGE TO RFP)
9) RFP Reference:  N/A
Question: It is possible that named suppliers might vary between the June 20 requested date and the final July 29 final submission date.  If we submit Past Performance to comply with the June 20 deadline but changes in suppliers occur, will we be permitted to submit a revised Past Performance Volume as long as we meet the July 29 deadline? 

Response:  Per the Procurement Regulations, an Offeror's proposal or updates thereto will not be considered late if submitted on or before July 29, 2008 at the location and by the time specified in the RFP.  Part of the Government's rationale for providing industry with a chance to review the Draft PWS and DRFP was to give Offerors enough time to establish their strategic relationships for this procurement.  If an Offeror has not yet finalized its proposal team and is not in a position to provide a complete Past Performance Volume by June 20, 2008, the Government cannot preclude proposal updates.  For Offerors who plan to provide updates to previously submitted volumes on or before July 29, 2008; Offerors are cautioned to account for any planned updates when considering page limitations for the initial Volume submittal and in the case of the Past Performance Volume, that no more than "six ... references for the ... entire team" may be used for Past Performance 
Questionnaires.  Further, if Offeror's plan to submit a partial Past Performance Volume, (i.e. less than 6 Past Performance References, or less than 40 pages) with plans to submit updates at a later time, the Offeror's are requested to document this approach in the accompanying cover letter.  Before implementing a partial/update approach to a Volume submittal, Offeror’s are encouraged to read Section L.II-3 (B) and (E) of the RFP. (NO CHANGE TO RFP)
10) RFP Reference:  L.II-5.A
Question: The RFP indicates: “Provide a chart or matrix that relates Mission Suitability Volume and Cost Volume submittals to the experience that you consider relevant in this RFP (i.e. those six contracts for which the Offeror will submit Past Performance Questionnaires.)” With Past Performance being requested on June 20, Mission Suitability due July 15, and Cost due July 29, our responses to the RFP requirements for Volumes I and III will continue to be works in progress and not completed in time for the Past Performance Volume deadline. Will NASA consider an overview matrix that identifies the Mission Suitability factors and WBS elements sufficient for the Past Performance Volume? With the Cost Volume (final submittal) the Offeror would submit a complete, fully detailed matrix.

Response:  NASA views the "Chart or Matrix that relates Mission Suitability and Cost Volume submittals to the experience that you consider relevant to this RFP", as an opportunity for each Offeror to correlate its experience with its capability and cost.  Because the "Chart or Matrix" is not page limited, each Offeror may have different approaches to satisfying this requirement.  Accordingly, the Government considers the use of "Chart or Matrix" as a strategic proposal decision unique to each Offeror. (NO CHANGE TO RFP) 

11) RFP Reference:  L.II-5.A
Question: Is the cross reference matrix to be page counted?

Response:  Per Section L.II-3 C, the cross reference matrix is not subject to the page limitations specified in the RFP. (NO CHANGE TO RFP)
12) RFP Reference:  L.II-5.A
Question: Provide a Chart or matrix that relates Mission Suitability and Cost Volume submittals to the experience that you consider relevant to this RFP (i.e. those six contracts for which the Offeror will submit Past Performance Questionnaires).”  Please clarify the requirement. Specifically, please identify whether you desire 1) a cross-reference matrix that identifies where in the MS and/or Cost volumes specific contract references are included/referenced, 2) a cross-reference matrix that identifies where in the proposal any/each of the eight “past performance history” topics are discussed/referenced and how these relate to the six referenced programs, 3) a narrative discussion of how specific features or our program discussed in the MS and Cost volumes derive from activities in each/any of the referenced programs, 4) some combination of the preceding three alternatives.

Response:  NASA views the "Chart or Matrix that relates Mission Suitability and Cost Volume submittals to the experience that you consider relevant to this RFP", as an opportunity for each Offeror to correlate its experience with its capability and cost.  Because the "Chart or Matrix" is not page limited, each Offeror may have different approaches to satisfying this requirement.  Accordingly, the Government considers the use of "Chart or Matrix" as a strategic proposal decision unique to each Offeror.  (NO CHANGE TO RFP)
13) RFP Reference:  RFP Transmittal Letter
Question: “Alterations to the Key Personnel and Lost Time Case Rates forms are not permitted.”  a) L-10 (LTC matrix) is a table and does not conform to the Section L requirement for type size (i.e., the form includes Arial 11 whereas Section L allows Arial 10). May we change the font in the table to Arial 10?

Response:  The Lost-Time Cases form can be modified to use Arial Font, size 10. (NO CHANGE TO RFP)
14) RFP Reference:  L.II-4.B - STC 3-1
Question: This paragraph, which relates to Volume I, Mission Suitability, contains the following sentence:  “The Completed RFP and Other Plans / Data Volume must not include salary and fringe benefit cost information, but should reference where the information appears in the cost volume.”  Could you explain the relevance of this requirement being included in this part of Section L?  Or should this sentence be referring to the Mission Suitability Volume and not the Completed RFP and Other Plans / Data Volume?
Response:  Section L.II-4.B - STC 3-1 is hereby amended to replace the words "Completed RFP and Other Plans/Data Volume" with "Mission Suitability Volume".
15) RFP Reference:  L.25 Table 1 - MTA 1-6
Question: Page L-25, Table 1 references a Quality Assurance Management Plan. Section MTA1-6 asks the Offer to describe its approach to quality assurance in accordance with DRD1234QE-001, but we cannot find a requirement in Mission Suitability to provide a Quality Assurance Management Plan with our proposal. Is a separate plan required, or is the description of our approach in response to MTA1-6 sufficient to meet this requirement?

Response:  The Government thought it was understood that the Offerors must submit a QAMP per the initial submittal requirements on the DRD.  For clarification, yes, a separate QAMP plan is required and MTA1-6 is hereby amended to insert the following phrase: "shall be submitted with the initial proposal and".
16) RFP Reference:  L.II-4
Question:  Para. L.II-4 states that the Offeror’s proposal shall adhere to the following outline to aid the Government’s evaluation of Volume I, Mission Suitability.  Would the Government please consider the following changes to the outline:  a. Page L-35, Para. MTA6 – MTA6-3 appears to be a sub-component of MTA6-2.  Is it acceptable to merge these two requirements together into one section in our proposal?  b. Pages L-35-36, Para. STC1 – It appears that many of the sub-elements (e.g., STC1-1, SCT1-2, STC1-3 recruiting and retaining) identified on these pages are items that we typically address in the total compensation plan required under STC3.  Would the Government consider revising the requirements identified for STC1 to only include the first paragraph in SCT1-3 and STC1-4 and STC1-5
Response:  The government established the outline in order to have conformity in the preparation of the proposals.  A change of this magnitude at this point in time of the acquisition process would not be of benefit to the government. (NO CHANGE TO RFP)
17) RFP Reference:  L - SPB 1 and SPB 2
Question:  Page L-42-43, SBP1, Para. B.4 and L-44, SBP2, Para. B.4 – The Summary Subcontracting Reports and Individual Subcontracting Reports referenced in this paragraph may constitute a considerable number of pages.  Is it possible to exclude these reports from the page count?
Response:  No, any subcontracting reports provided as supporting information in the proposal are subject to the page count limitation. (NO CHANGE TO RFP)
18) RFP Reference:  L - EPM
Question:  There are connectivity errors in the EPM.  Will they be corrected in an amendment? For example: In the Cost Summary Template – 127829-SOL-001-055.xls Cell C9 shows ='C:\DOCUME~1\wil45251\LOCALS~1\Temp\notesC9812B\Finals with Track Changes for Don''s Vault\[MSFOC RFP L-1a.xls]CA'!C24.  This incorrect path is throughout the document.  Each of the cells is looking for the same location with a different CA cell number.  This path will not locate the correct numbers for this form. The EPM forms in the Final RFP are named Attachment L-1 Cost Related Forms - 127829-SOL-001-052.xls, Attachment J-1 – 127829-SOL-001-053.xls, Attachment J-2 Cost Template – 127829-SOL-001-054.xls, Cost Summary Template – 127829-SOL-001-055.xls.  There are no files named MSFOC RFP L-1a, 1b, 1c or 1d.  Also, there obviously have been rows and columns added leaving some cells pointing to the blank cells for data and some cells are blank that should have formulas.  There are too many incorrect cells to list them all here.  Examples: in 127829-SOL-001-052.xls, in worksheet “CC-(cont)” ....Do we make corrections to the spreadsheets or wait for you to release corrected sheets?
Response:  Files become modified when posting to NAIS, resulting in a change to the file name.  In most cases, NAIS uses the word "Section" and the RFP uses the word "attachment".  File should be renamed per Section L instructions (L.II-6.D Section 9 A).  Offerors may contact the Contracting Officer if they wish to obtain a CD which contains a copy of the original files used to post the RFP to NAIS.  
	Instructions:  To update links in the Total Cost Summary Form,  1. on the toolbar select menu EDIT, Links.  A pop-up menu appears that shows the files that are linked to this workbook.  2. Select a file, click Change Source and find the file needed. 3. Repeat for all incorrectly linked files. (L-1a, L-1b)  4. The Offeror also has the option of manually inputting the totals.
To fill formulas for cells that are without a formula in Tab CC (Cont): 1. Select/highlight the cell above each empty cell. 2. From the menu choose Edit, 3.  then Copy.  4. Move cursor to the empty cell below it  5. From the menu choose Edit, 6. Then Paste. This also resolves the associated column computation errors that may occur in the associated columns CE – EA.


19) RFP Reference:  Section L
Question:  Section L states that the Cost should be calculated to WBS level 3, but in several locations within Section L it still states level 2.  Is WBS Level 3 correct for costing?  Examples are:  Page L-63 of the Final RFP in sections 3(a) and (c) and Page L-67 Item 17.
Response:  The Cost Forms should be summed to WBS level 2.  BOE’s are to be provided at WBS level 3 per RFP reference L.II-6.D Section 11. (NO CHANGE TO RFP)
20) RFP Reference:  L.II-3.B
Question:  This paragraph states that Volume III shall be consecutively numbered, beginning with “1.”  Since the Offerors may be submitting cost proposals from multiple subcontractors in their Cost Volume, would the Government consider revising this requirement to allow subcontractors to individually page number their proposals beginning with “1?”  
Response:  The Cost Volume page numbering scheme offered in the RFP is the preferred approach.  However, in the Cost Volume only, separate subcontractor submissions are not subject to the page numbering scheme. (NO CHANGE TO RFP)
21) RFP Reference:  L-1b
Question:  Cost Form CV has been added to Attachment L-1 Cost Related Forms - 127829-SOL-001-052.xls.  There are no written instructions.  Will they be added in an amendment or should we just complete the form and attach it to the Cost Summary Template
Response:  The instructions for Form CV are included in Tab - Index (Cont), Rows 24 and 25. (NO CHANGE TO RFP) 
22) RFP Reference:  L-1a
Question:  In working with Tab CC - (cont) in Attachment L-1, we have noticed that the first level PWS elements (i.e., 1.0, 2.0, 3.0, etc.) do not allow us to insert staffing levels. However, the PWS specifically defines work scope in these areas (e.g., 1.5 pages for PWS 1.0; 2.5 pages for PWS 2.0; etc.).  Our intent was to allocate manpower costs to this first level to be consistent with the PWS.  Are the Offerors allowed to make changes to the Government's cost forms to make them correlate exactly with our staffing plan?

Response:  No, the Offeror's staffing plan must correlate to the Government cost forms.  The Government's intent when developing the Cost templates was that the 1st level WBS was established as a summary level reflecting a roll up of the lower level WBS staffing.  Staffing for work requirements listed at the first level WBS should be allocated to an appropriate lower level WBS as determined by the Offeror. (NO CHANGE TO RFP)
23) RFP Reference:  L-1a Tabs CB, CC(cont), and CD, L-1b Tab CN, and J-10
Question:  Although Form CD, CN and Attachment J-10 include the Craft Supervisor SLC, Form CC (cont) is missing the Craft Supervisor SLC.  Because Form CB includes the Craft Supervisor position, the link from CC (Cont) to Form CC(cont) becomes incorrect.  At the same time, Forms CB, CD and CN, identify the Craft Supervisor position as a craft job while it is shown on Attachment L-3 as a non-SCA job position. Will these forms be corrected for consistency?
Response:  Yes, a cell was omitted in Form CC (cont) for Contract Year One that should have addressed the Craft Supervisor labor category. The RFP is hereby amended as follows: “Instructions for Form CC (cont) are revised: the Crafts Supervisor SLC for Contract Year One should be added by taking the following steps:  1. Select/Highlight cells B63 through B113, 2. On the menu select Edit, and Copy, 3. Move cursor to cell B64 and select Edit, then Paste on the menu, 4. In Cell B63 type “Craft Supervisor”.”
24) RFP Reference:  L-11
Question:  Unlike the other pre-priced Task Order, this Task Order does not identify the chargeable WBS elements for this scope. Which WBS element should this work be charged to?  
Response:  Attachment L-11 is hereby amended to add a reference to WBS 1.1.2.
25) RFP Reference:  L-1a Tab CJ
Question: This form requires input by WBS for subcontractor’s costs for Labor and Materials.  For each year, the formula indicates that the total subcontractor costs would be the sum of the subcontractor’s Labor and Materials cost.  There are other costs that make up total subcontractor costs including ODC, travel, relocation, overheads, G&A and fee.  How are these costs to be handled so that the totals are correct? 
Response:  For purposes of proposal preparation and evaluation, the Offerors should include all labor related direct costs and associated burdens in the columns designated on the form for Labor and all other non-labor costs, with the exclusion of fee, should be included in the columns designated on the form for Materials. (NO CHANGE TO RFP)
26) RFP Reference:  J-1, 5.1
Question:  Serve two meals per day, 5 days per week and 52 weeks per year.  Does the Government intend to provide an average number of people for which food services are currently provided?
Response:  Historical information of this nature is not available and therefore cannot be provided.  NOTE: Please refer to questions #27, 31, 57, 58, and 71. (NO CHANGE TO RFP)
27) RFP Reference:  J-1, 5.1
Question:  The Contractor shall be responsible for provision of consumable materials.  Will the Government expect the contractor to be responsible for provisioning food in addition to consumable materials?  If so, will the profit on food be used by the Contractor to offset the operating costs or does the Government intend to collect all profits?
Response:  Yes, the contractor is responsible for food and consumables.  Yes, profit on food is expected to offset operating cost consistent with the net margin goal identified in J-1-A, Performance Standards, Section 5.0, Page J-1-A-9.  NOTE: Please refer to questions #26, 31, 57, 58, and 71. (NO CHANGE TO RFP)
28) RFP Reference:  RFP Transmittal Letter
Question:  “Alterations to the Key Personnel and Lost Time Case Rates forms are not permitted.”  b) L-2 (Key Personnel form) establishes specific areas of the form, some with lines, for data entry. Would changes to these prescribed areas or deletions of the lines constitute “alterations to the forms” proscribed by the cover letter? We suggest changing the statement in the cover letter to the following: “Changes to headings in Key Personnel and Lost Time Case Rates forms are not permitted; offerors may modify the forms to conform to their formatting of proposal tables providing such formatting complies with other RFP requirements for such tables.”
Response:  Yes.  Changes to these specific areas or deletions of the lines would constitute proscribed “alterations to the forms”. (NO CHANGE TO RFP)
29) RFP Reference:  L.II-4
Question:  “Include qualification standards for all positions proposed."  Attachment L-9 is the JD/Q form, which includes two positions per page. There are 93 labor categories listed in Attachment J-10. If we were to propose only one skill level for each of these 93 positions, the resulting collection of JD/Q’s would amount to 47 pages, or over 15% of the total page count for the Mission Suitability volume. Is it the Government’s intent that we dedicate such a substantial portion of the Mission Suitability write-up to addressing this one requirement? If not, we suggest changing this Section L requirement to add the following underlined words: “Include qualification standards for all positions proposed in the Cost Volume.”
Response:  Section L.II-6 D, Section 9, B, 3, instructions indicate the JD/Q forms associated with Attachment L-9 are to be included in the cost volume.  Section L.II-4 refers to the definition of the qualification standards utilized to assess the workforce. The Government made a substaintial adjustment in the Mission Suitability Volume page count limitation between the DRFP page count limitation of 200 pages and the final RFP page count limitation of 300 pages.  The Government made this adjustment predicated on information provided from all potential Offerors in the one-on-one sessions during the Pre-solicitation Conference.  The Government considered the input from industry and believes that the Final RFP page count limitation is sufficient. Therefore, the content and the page count limitations for the Mission Suitability Volume remain the same as published in the RFP. (NO CHANGE TO RFP)
30) RFP Reference:  L.II-3.B
Question:  Table 1 (page limitations) states that the WBS and Dictionary are to be included within the 300 page limitation for the Mission Suitability volume.  The WBS is included in the PWS (Attachment J-1) and its Dictionary can be presented in tabular form in just a few pages. However, if the Government desires that offerors include their CWBS (i.e., their expansion of the WBS to lower levels), then the CWBS Dictionary could run to a large number of pages. This, in turn, would require offerors to severely abbreviate all of the other information required in the Mission Suitability volume, thus unnecessarily limiting the material provided for the Government’s evaluation. Please clarify whether the Dictionary required is for the Government’s WBS or the offeror’s CWBS. If for the CWBS, we suggest that Section L be modified to direct offerors to include the CWBS and its Dictionary in the Cost Volume.  
Response:  In the final RFP the Government intended for Offerors to utilize the PWS Work Breakdown Structure.  However, the Government recognizes the inconsistency with DRD 1234MA-002 which requires Offerors to utilize the Contractor's WBS. In order to resolve this inconsistency, the RFP is hereby ammended as follows: Attachment J-3, DPD, DRD 1234MA-002 Work Breakdown Structure (WBS) and Dictionary, paragraph 11 and paragraph 12 are changed as follows: Paragraph 11: Initial submission: Draft WBS and Dictionary populated to WBS Level 3 with proposal: Paragraph 12 Submission Frequency: 90 days after contract award, update as required to reflect all Contractor WBS elements.
31) RFP Reference:  N/A
Question:  Company X have been approached by several companies looking to Prime the Manufacturing Support and Facility Operations contract, looking to subcontract the food services to us.  Most are asking if we would be able to provide these services under a break-even operation concept.  My question is the definition of this concept and if maintaining a net margin would preclude profit on sales?

Response:  Reference Attachment J-1-A, Performance Standards, 5.1, Page J-1-A-9, is hereby amended to reflect changes under several columns within the Table as identified below:  Column entitled "WORK TOPIC" change the words "Break-even Operation concept" to "Food Service Operation".  Column entitled "PERFORMANCE MEASURE" is changed to read as follows: "Develop a pricing schedule with respect to economy of scale and net margin goal".  Column entitled "PERFORMANCE STANDARD" is changed to read as follows: "Maintain a net margin goal within +/- 5% of monthly gross sales and + 5.0 /- 1.5 % of annual sales. NOTE: Please refer to questions #26, 27, 57, 58, and 71.
32) RFP Reference:  J-12-8
Question:  Can you please provide detailed PV/S database information on the pressure vessel systems listed in attachment J-12-8 of the RFP?  Details in current database should include specs., and inspection/certification records of the Michoud systems needed to make an accurate cost estimate for the proposal.
Response:  The requested PV/S database information cannot be obtained and provided to Offerors in a timeframe that will support proposal preparation.  It is not viewed as mandatory to the establishment of a cost estimate for the proposal. (NO CHANGE TO RFP)
33) RFP Reference:  Section L
Question:  Escalation as provided in Section L, Page L-55, is given for Fiscal Years.  Is this Government Fiscal Year or Offeror Fiscal Year?  Also, there are no instructions for the application of these escalation rates, will instructions be provided?  Example:  When using the Global Insight Escalation Factors, the instructions for use are:   Global Insight Escalation factors are applied to the labor rate of the year noted to obtain the rate for the following year (e.g. 2008 labor rate is escalated by 2009 factor (3.5%) to calculate the 2009 rate).
Response:  The Global Insight Escalation factors are based on a calendar year and should be applied in accordance with the formulas contained in the Form cells.  Note: Please refer to question # 33. (NO CHANGE TO RFP)
34) RFP Reference:  Section L
Question:  The direct productive labor hours used in (EPM) cost model template is 1860 hours.  Is this number to be used by Offerors or are we to calculate our own direct productive labor hours based on the type labor we are using?
Response:  Per Section L-1, L.II-6, D, Section 9, C.8, the Offeror should propose using their own productive hour factor in accordance with file L-1a, Tab CH, Rows 33 – 36. (NO CHANGE TO RFP)
35) RFP Reference:  N/A
Question:  Three types of labor years are used throughout the EPM cost templates and other cost requirements.  These are all inconsistent in the type years they utilize.  Please clarify the type of years (Government Fiscal Year, Contract Year or Calendar Year) to be used for each.   CLINs  1, 4, 7, 10 & 13 are each defined as Feb 1 through Jan 31

Examples are:

• Award fee is based on Government Fiscal Years (10/01 – 09/30)

• Overtime percentages are given in Calendar Year (01/01 – 12/31)

• CA, CA& CC seem to require Contract Year 

• CC (cont) is in Contract Years but the conversion of WYEs to hours may be Calendar Years based on how the direct productive labor hours were calculated

• CE, CF, CH, CI, CJ appear to be Calendar Years

• CD is based on Government Fiscal Year but does not have GFY 2014 for the last 4 months of performance

• CG is Contract Years

Response:   The RFP contains various requirements that utilize different timeframes which are defined as follows:  

· The Government Fiscal Year (GFY) is 10/1 – 9/30, the award fee plan follows the GFY. The Contract Year is the period 12/1 – 11/30.  
· The cost including overtime percentages for each contract year and Option Period begins with 12/1 and ends with 11/30.  
· The Calendar Year is 1/1 – 12/31.  The escalation factors supplied by Global Insight are based on a Calendar Year.
·  The Offeror’s Fiscal Year is based on that Offeror’s disclosed accounting period as specified by 48 CFR 9904.406.    (NO CHANGE TO RFP)
36) RFP Reference:  N/A
Question:  Can you please tell me where we can find DRD 1234OM-012 that is referenced in the subject solicitation?
Response:  The subject DRD can be found in RFP Attachment J-3, DPD on Page J-3-82. (NO CHANGE TO RFP)
37) RFP Reference:  J-1 Sections 3.3 and 3.4
Question:  Support for Common Manufacturing Resources Section 3.3 and Support for Dedicated Manufacturing Areas Section 3.4 are noted in the SOW as "effort in this section is not part of mission services, and if determined appropriate will be authorized by an IDIQ Task".   Is the cost to maintain these facilities Mission Services under the umbrella of Section 4.0 or to be individually priced IDIQ utilizing Schedule J-1 labor rates or a forthcoming pre-priced IDIQ?
Response:  The requirements for PWS Section 3.3 are reflected in the Pre-Priced IDIQ Task Orders for Ares, Orion, and ET, and the costs should be estimated accordingly.  The Pre-priced IDIQ Task Order for NCAM contains requirements for PWS Section 3.3 and Section 3.4.  All other requirements for PWS Section 3.4 will be addressed post-award via IDIQ Task Order as required by the user(s)/tenant(s) responsible for each dedicated manufacturing area.   (NO CHANGE TO RFP)             
38) RFP Reference:  F.3
Question:  Section F shows the contract period of performance from October 1, 2008 through September 30, 20011.  This appears to be inconsistent with information previously published by NASA and with the information in Section L that shows the phase-in period ending on January 31, 2009.  Please confirm the correct contract period of performance.
Response:  Section F 3.0, is hereby amended to reflect a period of performance from December 1, 2008 through November 30, 2011.  Section F 4.0, Option 1 is hereby amended to reflect a period of performance from December 1, 2011 through November 30, 2012 and Option 2 is hereby ammended to reflect a period of performance from December 1, 2012 through November 30, 2013.
39) RFP Reference:  H.18
Question:  Clause H.18, Supplemental Task Ordering Procedures, appears to include an incorrect reference.  Paragraph (c) references issuing a Task Order Request (TOR) in accordance with paragraph (b) of Clause H.20.  Clause H.20 addresses Small Business Participation – Contract Targets.  Please confirm that the correct reference in Clause H.18 should be paragraph (b) of Clause H.17, Task Ordering Procedure.
Response:  Section H, Clause H.18, is hereby amended to delete the reference to paragraph (b) of Clause H.20 and to replace with paragraph (b) of Clause H.17. 
40) RFP Reference:  L-3
Question:  1) The Quality Assurance Inspector has BS degree listed in the Minimum Education.  2) Job Description and Map it states “Minimum education requirements are high school or equivalent GED, Continuing Education/Training directly related to this field of work, and a minimum of 5 years specifically related Quality Assurance and aerospace experience.  Undergraduate level courses, AS/AA, Bachelors of Science (BS)/Bachelors of Arts (BA), Certification in Quality Assurance [Non Destructive Testing (NDT)] or related fields may serve in lieu of one year relevant experience.  Which is the proper minimum education for this position?

Response:  Attachment L-3, Standard Labor Category Position Descriptions - Non SCA, is hereby amended as follows: "Quality Assurance Inspector" position description has been deleted.  The "Quality Assurance Inspector" labor category is covered in Attachment J-19, Statement of Equivalent Rate for Federal Hires and will be conformed to an SCA category upon contract award.
41) RFP Reference: H-6 
Question:  The place for identification of key personnel is listed as “TBD (To be filled in at contract award).”  Should the key personnel be inserted into the clause at the time of proposal submission, or will NASA insert the list later?
Response:  Section L, Table L-10 contains the requirement for the Contractor to insert the Key Personnel names as a part of their proposal submittal.  (NO CHANGE TO RFP)
42) RFP Reference:  I-1.A
Question:  The clause number for “Other Than Cost or Pricing Data – Modifications (Alt II & III) appears to be missing.  We believe this should be Clause 52.215-21.
Response:  Section I is hereby amended to correct an administrative error associated with completing a clause reference by adding the clause number 52.215-21 to the clause name and date.
43) RFP Reference:  L.II-3
Question:  Note C to L.II-3, Proposal Page Limitations, requires that a minimum of 25 pages be used for the prime contractor’s Total Compensation Plan and a minimum of 15 pages be used for each subcontractor’s Total Compensation Plan. (1) We request the elimination of the minimum page count for the TCP since this requirement penalizes offerors who can be more concise in describing their compensation plans, limiting their ability to assign pages in the volume as appropriate to describe their approach to the total mission requirement.  Also by specifying a minimum number of pages per subcontractor plan, NASA is inadvertently encouraging the use of small teams, since a prime with five subcontractors has to use 45 pages more text on the TCP than a prime with two subcontractors.  (2) Is a Total Compensation Plan required from subcontractors who agree in writing to accept a program level TCP (e.g., the one described by the prime Offeror)?
Response:  (1 and 2) Section L-1, L-II.3 A., TABLE 1, is hereby amended to replace Note C as follows:  "Note C: Address this requirement within 300 page limitation for Volume I, Mission Suitability, with a minimum allocation of at least 25 pages for Prime Contractor or an Offeror's consolidated Total Compensation Plan."               NOTE: Please refer to question #78.  
44) RFP Reference: L.II 
Question:  2.B: “Cover Page. The first page of each proposal must show the information specified in paragraph (c)(2) of FAR provision 52.215-1…” (FAR 52.215-1 requires evidence of the proposal signing authority.) 2.C” “Each volume shall include a Table of Contents…” 3.C: “Exclude from the page limitations any required cross-reference list/matrix or chart, proposal indices, and section dividers which contain no substantive narration.”   Please clarify whether or not the proposal cover page, the delegation of authority, and the Table of Contents are excluded from the proposal page count limitation.
Response:  Per Section L.II-3 C, the table of contents are considered a proposal index and not subject to the page limitations specified in the RFP.   The cover page and delegation of authority are subject to the proposal page count limitations.  (NO CHANGE TO RFP)
45) RFP Reference:  
Question:  What are the MSFOC contractor’s liability limits when handling and/or transporting flight hardware?
Response:  The final RFP does not contain a requirement for the MSFOC contractor to handle and/or transport flight hardware.  Any such requirement would be addressed post-award using the IDIQ Task Order procedures. (NO CHANGE TO RFP)
46) RFP Reference:  General
Question:  Is the Offeror responsible for providing site wide training? There is an apparent discrepancy between the PWS and Presolicitation Conference slides regarding this issue.
Response:  The RFP includes all training requirements and supersedes any previously provided information. (NO CHANGE TO RFP)
47) RFP Reference:  General
Question:  Does NASA intend offerors to use indirect rates to develop proposal costs?  Will NASA use the ceiling indirect rates to evaluate probable costs?
Response:  Reference Cost Form L-1 a, Tab CG, provides location to propose indirect rates.  The ceiling indirect rate is only required for J-2, Facilities PWS (propose within Cost Form L-1 c) and will be evaluated in accordance with Section M.7, paragraph A.  (NO CHANGE TO RFP)
48) RFP Reference:  General
Question:  Does Lockheed Martin have site specific equipment that will become Government Furnished Equipment? If so, is the successful contractor required to purchase this equipment?
Response:  No. (NO CHANGE TO RFP)
49) RFP Reference:  May 27, 2008 Memorandum
Question:  Does the memorandum dated May 27, 2008 which eliminated the requirement for offerors to bid defined benefits include retired medical benefits?
Response:  The memorandum was provided as an update to the Technical Reference Library as a function of the Draft RFP and is not considered part of the Final RFP. (NO CHANGE TO RFP)
50) RFP Reference: DRD Deliverables Matrix 
Question:  This matrix lists deliverables including the 1234MA-003 Financial Management Report (533M and 533Q), 1234MA-004 Monthly Management Status Review, 1234EE-014 Discharge Monitoring Report (DMR), and several others that the new contractor is required to submit during phase-in but which appear to still be the responsibility of the incumbent contractor during phase-in. Can the Government please clarify whether these deliverables are due after contract award or after contract start?
Response:  The RFP includes the DRD's referenced in the Offerors question and each DRD contains specific reference to submittal requirements.  Some DRD's contain requirements for submittal based upon number of days after contract award.   Contract award is defined as the effective date of the contract.  NOTE: The DRD Reference Matrix information was provided in the Technical Reference Library as a function of the Draft RFP and is not considered part of the Final RFP.  (NO CHANGE TO RFP)
51) RFP Reference:  DRD Deliverables Matrix
Question:  There are several deliverables such as the IT Security Plan, Environmental Management System, Recycling and Affirmative Procurement Program, and others that are required per the RFP but not listed in the DRD matrix.  Most simply state “provide” or “develop” and do not state a timeframe for delivery.  Are Offerors to assume that these deliverables must be provided during the phase-In period?
Response:  The RFP includes the deliverables referenced in the Offerors question and each deliverable has unique submittal requirements.  The submittal requirements contained in the RFP for each deliverable reflect the requirements against which the Offeror's proposal should be prepared.                                       NOTE: The DRD Reference Matrix information was provided in the Technical Reference Library as a function of the Draft RFP and is not considered part of the Final RFP.  (NO CHANGE TO RFP)
52) RFP Reference:  DRD Deliverables Matrix
Question:  Please confirm that “CA” stands for Contract Award and the date listed in the matrix is the actual award date and not the first date of full performance.
Response:  Yes, "CA" stands for Contract Award.  For the balance of the question, please refer to the question # 50.  NOTE: The DRD Reference Matrix information was provided in the Technical Reference Library as a function of the Draft RFP and is not considered part of the Final RFP.  (NO CHANGE TO RFP)
53) RFP Reference:  Section J-1, Paragraph 1.2.1
Question:  A) 15.  Is the MSFOC contractor expected to monitor any public information sites for reporting announcements?
Response:  The MSFOC contractor is expected to obtain information from sources necessary to meet requirements of the PWS. (NO CHANGE TO RFP)
54) RFP Reference:  Section J-1, Paragraphs 1.1.2.8 and 1.1.2.10
Question:  Paragraphs 1.1.2.8 and 1.1.2.10 have removed all references to the conversion to MAXIMO Version 6.2. Should the requirement to discuss this conversion also be deleted from the Section L Mission Suitability volume instructions?
Response:  No. the scope has been relocated to the CMMS Pre-Priced IDIQ Task Order (Reference Attachment L-11) (NO CHANGE TO RFP)
55) RFP Reference:  Section J-1, Paragraph 3.2
Question:  Paragraph 3.2 states the “Contractor will assume responsibility for support of manufacturing general facilities upon contract award”.  We believe this should read “upon conclusion of the contract Phase-In period”.
Response:  The government anticipates the offerors will address transition of this responsibility as part of the Task Order Plan submitted in response to the Contract Phase-in Pre-Priced IDIQ Task Order.  (NO CHANGE TO RFP)
56) RFP Reference:  Section J-1, Paragraph 3.1
Question:  Paragraph 3.1 Integration of Manufacturing Operations Note: states “Effort in this PWS section is not part of Mission Services, and if determined appropriate, will be authorized by an IDIQ Task.” Further under this PWS, it states “the Contractor will assume responsibility for integration of all manufacturing operations upon conclusion of the contract phase in period”.  Does the Government intend to negotiate an IDIQ Task for all work under PWS 3.1 during the Phase-In Period?
Response:  The effort required by PWS Section 3.1 is covered in the Pre-priced IDIQ Task Order for ET, Orion, Ares, and NCAM.  No other known requirements, including Contract Phase-in, exist at this time. (NO CHANGE TO RFP)
57) RFP Reference:  Section J-1, Paragraph 5.1
Question:  There are no templates for food service; will the Government provide these?
Response:  No.  Templates for food service will not be provided. NOTE: Please refer to questions #26, 27, 31, 58, and 71. (NO CHANGE TO RFP)
58) RFP Reference:  Section J-1, Paragraph 5.1
Question:  Will NASA provide historical data for food service; i.e., headcounts, gross sales, net margins?  
Response:  No. The requested food service historical information cannot be obtained and provided to Offerors in a timeframe that will support proposal preparation.  It is not viewed as mandatory to the establishment of a cost estimate for the proposal.                                                                NOTE: Please refer to questions #26, 27, 31, 57, and 71. (NO CHANGE TO RFP)
59) RFP Reference:  Section J-1, Paragraph 5.8
Question:  Will the Government provide workload data for pricing pest control services?   
Response:  No. The requested workload data cannot be obtained and provided to Offerors in a timeframe that will support proposal preparation.  It is not viewed as mandatory to the establishment of a cost estimate for the proposal. (NO CHANGE TO RFP)
60) RFP Reference:  Section J-1, Paragraph 6.2
Question:  Reference Work Requirements.  Will the Government provide workload data for the operation and maintenance of the barges or is this work ordered on an IDIQ basis?  
Response:  Reference J-1, PWS, paragraph 6.2.  Operation and maintenance of barges will be IDIQ only. (NO CHANGE TO RFP)
61) RFP Reference:  Section J-1, Paragraph 6.4
Question:  Will the Government provide compliance history on the treatment plant?   
Response:  No. The requested compliance history on the treatment plant is not available and therefore, cannot be provided to Offerors.  It is not viewed as mandatory to the establishment of a cost estimate for the proposal. (NO CHANGE TO RFP)
62) RFP Reference:  Section J-1, Paragraph 9.0
Question:  Reference Work Requirements, 3:  Does MAF have any known PCBs?
Response:  Yes, PCB's exist at MAF but not at a reportable level. (NO CHANGE TO RFP)
63) RFP Reference:  Section J-1, Paragraph 9.2
Question:  Will the Government provide a listing of air emission sources?
Response:  The information is contained in the Air Permit which has already been provided in the Technical Reference Library. (NO CHANGE TO RFP)
64) RFP Reference:  Section J-1, Paragraph 9.4
Question:  Who administratively maintains the permit and who is responsible for the renewal of the permit, the owner?
Response:  NASA is the owner for waste management permits.  MSFOC contractor will administratively maintain waste management permits including preparation of renewal documentation. (NO CHANGE TO RFP)
65) RFP Reference:  Section J-1, Paragraph 9.4
Question:  Are the hazardous waste disposal facilities selected by NASA?
Response:  No. It is the Offeror's responsibility. (NO CHANGE TO RFP)
66) RFP Reference:  Section J-1, Paragraph 9.5
Question:  Reference item B). How often do the storage tanks typically have to be drained, drummed, and transferred to tank trailers? 
Response:  Samples of storage tank contents are taken prior to use.  If contamination is detected, a Corrective Maintenance work order is issued.  Please note the CM work order history beginning with FY2000 has been provided in the Technical Reference Library. (NO CHANGE TO RFP)
67) RFP Reference:  Section J-1, Paragraph 9.5
Question:  Reference item C). Will the Government provide workload data on the number of dust collectors, photochemical and biomedical waste?
Response:  Dust collector’s workload data information is provided in the Preventative Maintenance plans.  The PM plans were provided in the Technical Reference Library.  Photochemical and Biomedical waste workload data is not available. (NO CHANGE TO RFP)
68) RFP Reference:  Section J-1, Paragraph 9.6
Question: Will the Government provide history on the number, type, and size of spills?   
Response:  No.  Historical information of this nature is not available. (NO CHANGE TO RFP)
69) RFP Reference:  Section J-1, Paragraph 9.6
Question:  Is the Fire Brigade the "First Responder" as defined per 29 CFR 1910 or is the MSFOC?
Response:  Definition of the First Responder is dependent upon the incident.  It is anticipated that First Responder for each type of incident will be specified in the Associate Contractor Agreements with user(s)/tenants consistent with 29 CFR 1910. (NO CHANGE TO RFP)
70) RFP Reference:  Attachments J-1 & J-2
Question:  There is an overall lack of historical data or forecasted workload data present in the RFP to allow offerors to properly estimate manning. Does the Government intend to provide historical workload data or forecasted workload data to enable offerors to forecast the level of effort that may be anticipated during the performance of the required MSFOC functions?

Response:  The data (i.e. requirements, facilities, property, work order history, etc.) the Government has provided to date in support of this solicitation, is considered adequate to prepare a proposal response. (NO CHANGE TO RFP)
71) RFP Reference:  Attachment J-1-A, Performance Standards, 5.1
Question:  The following statement indicates that food services are to be a “break-even” operation. We assumed that the cost of services (food, labor and consumables) included the reasonable Overhead/G&A and profit as part of services provided. Our food services provider has previously talked to the NASA Small Business Office and was told that a break-even operation was not allowed a profit. Please provide clarification that our small business contractor will be allowed to include a reasonable profit into his cost for services.

Response:  Profit on food services is expected to be consistent with the net margin goal identified in J-1-A, Performance Standards, Section 5.0, Page J-1-A-9.  NOTE: Please refer to questions #26, 27, 31, 57, and 58. (NO CHANGE TO RFP)
72) RFP Reference:  Attachment J-1-A
Question:  Page 2, paragraph 1.2.1, Work Management, Response time for Routine Trouble calls:  Can you further explain "within 2 hours following notification of the call for both core and non-core working hours"?  Does this mean putting the call into the CMMS?  (The next table row indicates 30-days to complete)
Response:  Reference J-1-A, page 2, paragraph 1.2.1, Page J-1-A-2.   "Response time" means contacting the initiator of a routine trouble call within 2 hours of receipt of call.   (NO CHANGE TO RFP)
73) RFP Reference:  Attachment J-1-B
Question:  Many items not in the scope of work have requirements in the table.
Response:  That statement is correct; there is more detail in the Attachment J-1-B then in the Attachment J-1, PWS. (NO CHANGE TO RFP)
74) RFP Reference:  Attachment J-12-7
Question:  This Attachment provides Storm Supply Inventory List needed for the 2009 Hurricane Season.  Should offerors assume that that these supplies are currently available in inventory, and we only need to price replacements? Or should offerors price all items on the inventory list?
Response:  Yes, these supplies are currently available in inventory.  Offerors should determine those replacement items to be priced. (NO CHANGE TO RFP)
75) RFP Reference:  L.II-2.A.1
Question:  Please clarify whether the Transmittal Letter is excluded from page count, and in which volume it should be placed.

Response:  A transmittal letter is only required with the submittal of Volume IV, which is not page limited.  Offerors are not precluded from including a transmittal letter with other volumes and it will not be subject to the page count. (NO CHANGE TO RFP)
76) RFP Reference:  L.II-2.A.3
Question:  Please clarify whether the Table of Contents in each volume is excluded from page count.
Response:  Per Section L.II-3 C, the table of contents is considered a proposal index and is not subject to the page limitations specified in the RFP.   (NO CHANGE TO RFP)
77) RFP Reference:  L.II-2.A.4
Question:  Please clarify in which volume the PWS Reference Matrix should be placed.
Response:  NASA views the "Chart or Matrix that relates Mission Suitability and Cost Volume submittals to the experience that you consider relevant to this RFP", as an opportunity for each Offeror to correlate its experience with its capability and cost.  Because the "Chart or Matrix" is not page limited, each Offeror may have different approaches to satisfying this requirement.  Accordingly, the Government considers the use of "Chart or Matrix" as a strategic proposal decision unique to each Offeror. NOTE: Please refer to questions #10 & #12. (NO CHANGE TO RFP)
78) RFP Reference:  L.II-3
Question:  This section states with regard to the Total Compensation Plan: "Address this requirement within the 300 page limitation for Volume I Mission Suitability, with a minimum allocation of at least 25 pages for Prime Contractor and 15 pages for each Subcontractor."  May offerors submit plans that are less than 25 pages if they address all requirements?
Response:  No. Offerors must comply with the RFP requirements stated in Section L-1, L-II.3 A., TABLE 1, which are hereby amended to replace Note C as follows:  "Note C: Address this requirement within 300 page limitation for Volume I, Mission Suitability, with a minimum allocation of at least 25 pages for Prime Contractor or an Offeror's consolidated Total Compensation Plan."                                                                NOTE: Please refer to question # 43.
79) RFP Reference:  L.II-3
Question:  Section L.II-3 Table 1 requires that offerors include the Pre-Priced Task Order Plans in the Mission Suitability Volume and within the page count.  However there are no instructions in Section L or evaluation criteria in Section M regarding these plans.  Will the Government please provide detailed instructions and more importantly evaluation criteria for these plans?
Response:  The government intends to evaluate the Pre-Priced IDIQ Task Order Plans wherever the relevant requirement is reflected within the Section M evaluation criteria.  (NO CHANGE TO RFP)
80) RFP Reference:  L.II-3
Question:  Will the Government consider excluding the Pre-Priced Task Order Plans from the Mission Suitability Volume page count?
Response:  Per L-II.3 A., TABLE 1, Pre-Priced Task Order Plans are to be included in the Mission Suitability Volume page count. (NO CHANGE TO RFP)
81) RFP Reference:  L.II-4, Subfactor A, MTA1-1; M.5, Subfactor A, MTA1-1
Question:  L.II-4 states “The Mission Suitability factor affords offerors the opportunity to explain their approach to effectively and efficiently accomplish the work specified in the collective Performance Work Statement (i.e. Attachments J-1, J-1-A, J-1-B, J-1-C, and J-2) and thereby demonstrate their understanding of the requirements of the PWS.”  M.5 states “The Offeror’s description of work to be accomplished and an outline of methods by which the contractor proposes to accomplish work down through WBS level 3, including management concepts, plans, metrics, and approach to project management.”  (a) Please clarify whether offerors are expected to organize/segregate their response to MTA1-1 into separate technical approaches/responses for each of the PWS functional areas. (b) If so, please clarify whether WBS level 2 is an acceptable level of indenture for these responses.
Response:  (a) & (b) The Offerors choice on how to best "organize / segregate their response to MTA1-1" is considered a strategic proposal decision unique to each Offeror, as long as each Offeror meets the MTA1-1 requirement to provide said response down to WBS level 3. (NO CHANGE TO RFP)
82) RFP Reference:  L.II-6.D. Section 11
Question:  In the development of BOE text, the RFP requires text to the 3rd level, but the templates remain summarized at the 2nd level.  Templates do not change but in order populate level 2, level 3 needs to be staffed and BOEs written in order to accurately be rolled up into level 2.
Response:  Please refer to question # 19. (NO CHANGE TO RFP)
83) RFP Reference:  L.II-7
Question:  This section states: "The Offeror shall also complete the following sections of the RFP, as identified in TABLE L-10, and include a copy of the RFP (Sections B-K plus Attachments) in this volume following the SF33s."  Are offerors required to provide a complete copy of the RFP including all attachments as part of our Volume IV submission?
Response:  Yes, Section L-1, L.II-7 contains the requirement to provide a complete copy of the RFP in Volume IV, Completed RFP and Other/Plans Data. (NO CHANGE TO RFP)
84) RFP Reference:  Attachment L-1 Cost Forms
Question:  There are several different font types and sizes used in the templates provided in the RFP. Should offerors modify the templates to meet RFP font requirements?

Response:  Section L.II-3, Paragraph B, Is hereby amended to add the following:  "Notwithstanding the above, Government provided Cost Forms should be submitted in the proposal using the same font and size as the Cost Form provided with the RFP.
85) RFP Reference:  Attachment L-1 Cost Forms, Tab CK
Question:  Did NASA intend to provide a plug-in dollar amount for this section to allow for an even playing field among competitors?  If a plug-in dollar amount was not contemplated, will NASA provide the historical data  on usage on Mission Services material cost or usage by WBS?  Attachment J-12-12 identifies 12,000 line items of mission operating materials and supplies to be turned over to the contractor. 
Response:  No, it is not the Governments intention to provide a plug number for operating materials and supplies.  In various forums and interactions with Industry, NASA has consistently maintained that the MSFOC represents a new requirement from a scope perspective.  Accordingly, historical workload data is not available for new requirements. (NO CHANGE TO RFP)
86) RFP Reference:  Attachment L-16
Question:  Should the period of performance be 1 February to August 1 2009?
Response: Yes.  Attachment L-16 is hereby amended to change the period of performance to read February 1, 2009 to August 1, 2009.
87) RFP Reference:  Attachment L-17
Question:  Attachment L-17, Pre-priced Task Order for National Center for Advanced Manufacturing (NCAM).  Draft RFP Header remains in final file version and the acronym IDIQ is missing from the title.
Response:  Attachment L-17 is hereby amended to remove "Draft" from the document header and insert the acronym "IDIQ" in the title.
88) RFP Reference:  Section L-1, L.II-7, Table L-10
Question:  Please provide clarification of the Offerors requirement for Attachment J-5 in its current form.  The Attachment contains no area to be filled in by the Offeror.
Response:  Section L-1, L.II-7, Table L-10 is hereby amended to remove the reference to "Attachment J-5".
89) RFP Reference:  L-1d 
Question:  Are the links correct for the IDIQ Task Order totals?
Response:  The link is incorrect for Cell C19.  The RFP is hereby amended to correct that cell by performing the following process: 

	Instructions:  1. Select/Highlight cell C19.  2. Move cursor to the formula bar and review the source for cell C19.  It is currently linked to Tab CO $K$62.  3. Delete the 62 and 4. change it to 63 so that the link reads $K$63.









